
I. MEETING COMMENCES 
Roll Call 

II. MINUTES APPROVAL

a. Approval of April 28, 2021 Meeting Minutes

III. NEW BUSINESS: PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. Tibbetts Variance Request:
Daniel Tibbetts is requesting a variance (practical difficulty) to consider front setback reduction
to allow for a farmer's porch to be added to a single-family dwelling located at 1 Nolan's Way,
as shown on Tax Map 32, Lot 315-78, located in  Lake Zoning District. The front setback in the
Lake Zoning District is fifty feet (50').

b. DeRice Variance Request:
Andrew DeRice and Julie DeRice are requesting a variance (shoreland) for a front setback reduction for a
24’x26’ garage at 164 Lyons Point Road Tax Map 40, Lot 315-43, located in the Limited Residential
(Shoreland) Zoning District. The front setback in Limited Residential (shoreland) Zoning District is
twenty-five feet (25’). 
 
 
 
 

IV. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

TOWN GRAY
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

AGENDA • MAY 26, 2021

Zoning Board of
Appeals Regular
Meeting

Online via Zoom
https://zoom.us/j/7433264592

7:00 PM

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
* The Town of Gray is an equal opportunity employer and complies with all applicable equal access to
public accommodations law. If you are planning to attend a Town Council or Town committee or board
meeting and need assistance with a physical disability, please contact the Town Manager’s office at
least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to have the Town assist you. 657-3339. TTY 657-3931.

1



Town of Gray

Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes

April 28, 2021
Regular Meeting Henry Pennell Municipal Complex 7:00 PM

24 Main Street, Gray, ME 04039

Town of Gray Page 1 ZBA Minutes January 27, 2021

I. Meeting Commenced at 7:04 p.m.

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived
Brad Fogg Chair Present
Lena Reichardt Vice Chair Present
John Swiger Board Member Present
Joshua Sibert Board Member Present
Scott Dvorak Code Enforcement Officer Present
Sharon Young Town Council Liaison Present

This meeting was held virtually.

II. Minutes Approval

a. Zoning Board of Appeals - Regular Meeting – February 24, 2021

Motion to approve the Minutes of the February 24, 2021 meeting.

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Lena Reichardt, Vice Chair
SECONDER: John Swiger, Board Member
AYES: Fogg, Reichardt, Swiger, Sibert

III. New Business: Public Hearing

The agenda listed a)Hardship Variance and b)Administrative Appeal. During the meeting, the Board acted on the 
Administrative Appeal first and then then the Hardship Variance, therefore they are reflected in the proper 
position below).

a. Conroy Administrative Appeal

Sharline Conroy is requesting an Administrative Appeal for a denied permit under Shoreland Zoning Ordinance 
403.12.C.3 for 136 Birchwood Road, Tax Map 18, Lot 307-25, located in the Limited Residential (Shoreland) 
Zoning District.

Sharline and Dennis Conroy were present. They informed the Board they obtained the engineer’s report from SRG Engineering
and had provided a copy which was in the agenda packet. They also submitted letters from three residents expressing their support. 
Their request was for a height of 11 ft. above the height restriction of 20 ft. They said the CEO visited the property and upon 
review, an adjustment of 4 ft was identified, leaving them with the need of a 7 ft. variance instead of an 11 ft. variance. 

2



Minutes Zoning Board of Appeals April 28, 2021

Town of Gray Page 2 ZBA Minutes April 28, 2021

Scott Dvorak explained an updated engineer report was requested since the original one was outdated, and he wondered if the 
foundation may have become unstable. The new engineer’s report indicates it is fine.

Mr. Conroy explained there will be no obstructed views of the water from behind this small cape house as that lot is unbuildable. 
He is not asking for setbacks or sidebacks. He explained they put a cap on the foundation in January to protect it. He also explained 
it is a 10” foundation instead of an 8” foundation.  Mrs. Conroy expressed the need for the additional 7 ft. in order to have an 
upstairs bedroom (loft). They currently plan one bedroom on the main floor but want the additional bedroom upstairs so they can 
have friends and family visit and stay.

John Swiger asked the applicants if they received copies of the two DEP letters which the Board received. The Conroys stated they 
had not received the letters. Chair Fogg read one of the letters from Jeffrey Kalinich, Assistant Shoreland Zoning Coordinator of
Bureau of Land Resources, during the meeting. Mr. Conroy said they were at a disadvantage as they did not receive these letters.

Josh Sibert expressed his disagreement with DEP, and feels it is insulting that DEP says a hardship doesn’t exist considering the 
death, fire, and legal complications the applications have dealt with. Lena Reichardt explained that they need to work with the 
specific definition of hardship of a variance and all four specific criteria would have to be met. 

Chair Fogg asked Scott Dvorak if DEP had knowledge of the legal issues that the applicants dealt with and therefore didn’t meet 
the 18-month requirement due to ownership issues. Mr. Dvorak said that DEP was aware of the history of the property including 
the fire, that the applicant’s mother passed away, and there were probate court issues.

Board members discussed voting on the Administrative Appeal first as that would determine if they have the ability to rebuild. 

MOTION to grant an Administrative Appeal for a denied permit under Shoreland Zoning Ordinance 
403.12.C.3 for 136 Birchwood Road, Tax Map 18, Lot 307-25, located in the Limited Residential 
(Shoreland) Zoning District.

RESULT: APPROVED [3-1]
MOVER: Lena Reichardt, Vice Chair
SECONDER: John Swiger, Board Member
AYES: Fogg, Reichardt, Sibert
NAY: Swiger

b. Conroy Hardship Variance (Tabled from January 27, 2021)

Sharline Conroy is requesting a Variance (hardship) to consider height for the reconstruction of a single-
family dwelling on an existing foundation located at 136 Birchwood Road, as shown on Tax Map 18, Lot 
307-25, located in the Limited Residential (Shoreland) Zoning District. Dwellings within 25-75 feet of the 
normal high-water line in Limited Residential (Shoreland) Zoning District cannot exceed a 20-foot maximum 
building height.

3



Minutes Zoning Board of Appeals April 28, 2021

Town of Gray Page 3 ZBA Minutes April 28, 2021

John Swiger suggested this be tabled as the applicants didn’t have the DEP letters. That would provide time for them to speak to 
someone about building something different. Chair Fogg asked the applicants if they could do without the loft. Sharline Conroy 
explained they want the loft area for a bedroom, and it is important to have the peak part of the cape. She explained it would look 
terrible without it.

Chair Fogg asked if there were comments from the public – there were none.

Josh Sibert stated he felt it was in the spirit of the law to protect the neighbors and feels this would help their values. He said as a 
realtor, he views that it could make a $100,000.00 difference in value having one bedroom vs. two. John Swiger didn’t think they 
should consider value for future sale.

Lena Reichardt asked about the dimensions of the foundation and was told it is 26’ x 36’ for a total of 936 sq. feet. She suggested 
that is sufficient to have a second bedroom downstairs.  Mr. Conroy said the upstairs loft portion was to be 300 sq. feet. Josh Sibert 
said this reduces their home by 30% without the loft. Mrs. Conroy explained the downstairs is planned with a great room, small 
office, and one bedroom. She said it will destroy the cute little cottage if they can’t do the loft as it is a simple cottage, nothing 
extravagant. 

Brad Fogg stated he didn’t think they could grant the hardship. He referenced the letter from DEP, and also that he is aware of 
many homes with living space under 1000 sq. ft. so therefore there is reasonable floor space in this 936 sq. ft. space.

Lena Reichardt stated it feels like stretching the letter of law already by using the current foundation.  She cautioned they be 
careful, since the ZBA can be overruled by DEP which can be problematic for the town which the Board represents. She asked if 
the state requires the height restriction or if that is just in Gray. Scott Dvorak said the 2015 state guidelines dictate the height
requirement. Josh Sibert stated his wish is to grant this and risk being overruled by DEP.  Mrs. Conroy expressed they are not 
being unreasonable, and it will ruin the cuteness of the home if this isn’t granted.

Chair Fogg asked if there were public comments – there were none. After the vote on a), Chair Fogg stated that kills the hardship 
variance appeal as all four criteria must be met. 

a.  That the land in question cannot yield a reasonable return unless a variance is granted.

RESULT: FAILED [1-3]
MOVER: Lena Reichardt, Vice Chair
SECONDER: Josh Sibert, Board Member
AYES: Sibert
NAYS: Fogg, Reichardt, Swiger

Lena Reichardt said the neighbors are in agreement. Josh Sibert said this isn’t good economically for the town if it isn’t granted. 
Chair Fogg explained they can’t take economics into account. Mr. Conroy explained his wife had to leave the meeting and is 
distraught over the situation. Mr. Fogg stated he is empathetic to the applicants but the Supreme Judicial Court doesn’t look at 
emotions; it looks at the law. John Swiger called a Point of Order; since the Chair said the variance cannot pass since a) failed, he 
wasn’t sure they should continue as this discussion is painful to the applicants. Scott Dvorak said they need to go through all of the 
criteria so there are no questions later. The Board voted on b).

b. That the need for a variance is due to the unique circumstances of the property and not to the 
general conditions in the neighborhood.

4



Minutes Zoning Board of Appeals April 28, 2021

Town of Gray Page 4 ZBA Minutes April 28, 2021

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Lena Reichardt, Vice Chair
SECONDER: Josh Sibert, Board Member
AYES: Fogg, Reichardt, Swiger, Sibert

Lena Reichart explained this is similar to b) as there are letters on file from neighbors attesting to the character of the locality, etc. 
The Board voted on c).

c. That the granting of a variance will not alter the essential character of the locality.

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Lena Reichardt, Vice Chair
SECONDER: Brad Fogg, Chair
AYES: Fogg, Reichardt, Swiger, Sibert

Josh Swiger said this issue was caused by a change in the law, nothing the applicants did. Brad Fogg mentioned they couldn’t 
apply since the property was held up in the state system. Lena Reichardt mentioned that possibly all parties involved might have 
applied while ownership was being determined but then two other things, the fire and the changing of the law which happened, 
were beyond the control of the applicants. The Board voted on d).

d.  That the hardship is not the result of action taken by the applicant or a prior owner.

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Brad Fogg, Chair
SECONDER: Lena Reichardt, Vice Chair
AYES: Fogg, Reichardt, Swiger, Sibert

The Board then moved on to the main motion. Chair Fogg stated that statutorily speaking, their hands are tied since all four criteria 
didn’t pass, therefore the Board cannot grant the hardship variance.

Motion:  The Zoning Board of Appeals grants the Variance (hardship) to allow additional 7 ft. height 
above 20 ft. height requirement for the reconstruction of a single-family dwelling on an existing 
foundation located at 136 Birchwood Road, as shown on Tax Map 18, Lot 307-25, located in the 
Limited Residential (Shoreland) Zoning District. Dwellings within 25-75 feet of the normal high-water 
line in Limited Residential (Shoreland) Zoning District cannot exceed a 20-foot maximum building 
height.

5



Minutes Zoning Board of Appeals April 28, 2021

Town of Gray Page 5 ZBA Minutes April 28, 2021

RESULT: FAILED [1-3]
MOVER: Lena Reichardt, Vice Chair
SECONDER: Josh Sibert, Board Member
AYES: Sibert
NAYS: Fogg, Reichardt, Swiger

IV. Adjournment at 8:24 p.m.

Motion to adjourn at 8:24 p.m.

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Josh Sibert, Board Member
SECONDER: Lena Reichardt, Vice Chair

Chair Fogg adjourned the meeting at 8:24 p.m.

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29


	Zoning Board of Appeals Agenda
	Item II.a - ZBA Minutes 04282021.doc
	Item III.a - 1 Nolans Way-ZBA Application 5-26-2021.pdf
	Item III.b - 164 Lyons Point Rd-ZBA App. 5-26-21.pdf
	Item III.b - 164 Lyons Point Abutter letters.pdf

